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Orielton

SR95459904  OS 25” 1st ed XXXIX.16 & XLII.4  Hundleton

Cadw Register of Historic Parks and Gardens

1844  Mark Anthony Saurin, youngest son of the bishop of Dromore, married Margaretta Sutton Jones niece of Morgan Jones of    Cilwendeg whose heir she became. They purchased Orielton.   HS 1867 he died 1885, she 1870.

1873  Morgan James Saurin, son of above, born 1845, married Fanny Tyrwhitt Walker of  Bossington, Hants. HS 1883.

1923  William Mark Saurin married Apphia Ainsworth of Spotlands, Lancs. HS same year - now of Penally.  

see  Owen of Orielton by Francis Jones.  The Pembrokeshire Historian  No 5  (1974) 

pp 11-32.

See Lord of Orielton by Dillwyn Miles   The Journal of the Pembrokeshire Historical Society  No 14  2005

25th May 2002 branch visit

Much of the surrounding rubblestone wall appears to be intact. The north lodge and the West Farm lodge are in good external condition and occupied.

The drive is tarmacadammed with mixed woodland on each side. The right-hand fork (with much poorer surface) is private; access would require permission from the owner of the farm.

The gardener’s house appears to be empty and may be becoming derelict. The tenant gardener, Mr Norman Garlick, died last year and his widow has removed.

To the left is a lane to a field and next to it a wide clear stretch reminiscent of a ride.

Rhododendron ponticum along the left hand side and the stumps of felled trees on the right. The drive curves rightwards. The land falls away to the right as one approaches the house towards the lake (lily pond). This “lawn” once sloped away gently from the entrances to the mansion and the 19C maps show no drive or turning circle on this east side. Some older and some younger trees survive on the lawn.

On the east front only the south portico survives. The other, and the connecting passageway, were removed at some time and a window inserted to match the others. There was a fire at one time towards the north end of the house which has been restored by the present owners.

The portico has doric columns with some ironwork at each side of the raised area. The entrance hall merges with the magnificent stairwell.

The turning circle is at the south end of the house which displays a coat of arms with decorative insignia near the top of the two drain pipes.

The west face is plain with three rows of thirteen windows; there are more windows at basement level.

The land rises to the south. Two large stone(?) balls from atop gate piers somewhere lie on the ground. The first part of the slope is mown and bounded by a hedge at the top. Iron kissing gate into field.

Up the slope to the left is a farm gate into another more level enclosure containing various temporary farm structures. On the left (east) is a large walled enclosure much overgrown and full of sycamore and ash trees. This is marked as an American garden on RM Lockley’s sketch map. A vehicle-width hole has been made in the wall and a track goes between trees and out of sight. A little further southwards is a pedestrian doorway with a flat brick arch and a wooden lintel. The wall meets the desmene boundary wall at right angles. A lane runs east-west outside the wall. Eastwards, perhaps 200m, on the south side is a roofless small lodge with “gothicky” windows and door (the latter itself having two pointed arches above!) Much overgrowth.

West of the farm gate abutting the north edge of the lane is the listed gazebo.

It is an elegant three storied structure standing floorless and roofless though the walls seem to be intact. It is largely made of brick with dressnigs of stone.

One can see where the stairs were and much of the fireplaces are intact.

(see photographs)

The views are good even from ground level.

The road from the house turning circle takes one to the coach-house/stable block. This has been much restored and altered to accommodate laboratories and offices. The coach shed stone arches can be easily seen. The tower over the entrance is impressive.

To the north of this building there is a footpath eastwards which goes through mixed plantings of young “garden trees” such as cherry, sweet chestnut and exotic oak with wigelia and other garden shrubs. Keeping left one passes between a small feeder lake and the lily pond over a stone bridge. Small pet cemetery with three graves edged with low wrought iron railings. Name plate with date on one of them. Some disused lengths of higher (c0.5m) wrought iron railing of similar design to the grave surrounds. Later some of this is to be seen blocking the south doorway to the walled garden.

Soon the wall of the kitchen garden appears about 20m to the right through some older trees. Close to it, on the outside, is a Trachyocarpus fortunii reaching about 2m above the top of the wall. (Tressiders of Cardiff planted this species at Llanstinan which was also an Owen property)

The path draws closer to the aforementioned doorway in the centre of the south wall of the garden.

The garden is very large (one would guess about 3 acres) and of unusual shape being bilaterally symmetrical about the N-S axis. The north and east walls (one could not properly see the west wall) are brick-lined. There is a central glasshouse on the base of the original though GH is told by the warden that the glazing is modern. The main entrance is in the NE corner.

The path system has been completely hidden, there are no trees and the whole is covered by grass. (The tenant market gardener died last year). One could not see the NW corner. Access may be possible in the near future.

To the east of the south door is a very wet area which probably contained a pond/reservoir.

The path turned right and back to the drive. 

Documents in file:

Word (limited text)

1822 print

Photograph of gazebo

Photograph of lodge and figure on gate pier

Two photographs of jug illustrating mansion and a lodge

Two cuttings Western Telegraph July 2000 about Gaddum family inc photograph of mansion 1937.

Cutting ditto re Speculation Inn

Cutting Western Telegraph 10th April 2002 re Nelson family of the Speculation Inn. Lawrence Nelson was a landscape gardener and became head gardener at Orielton in 1906 where he laid out the Japanese garden.

In early/mid 19C Ellen Owen married George Bowen Jordan Price of Pigeonsford. Ellen died in 1856 having had six children. The widower then married Eleanor Powell of Nanteos. One of Ellen’s daughters married Admiral Charles Webley Hope and their son Charles William married Florence (“Polly”) Lewes of Llanllyr

See  M.N.E. Tiffany  Paterchurch. A Mystery Solved   The Journal of the Pembrokeshire Historical Society  Number 5  1992-1993

See Miles, Dillwyn  Lord of Orielton 1781-1859   The Journal of the Pembrokeshire Historical Society  Number 14  2005
